
SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
Council Chambers, 115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
MONDAY, November 10, 2014  6:30 p.m.  (Tuesday is Veterans Day.)   
www.surfsidebeach.org  -   (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 
 

 
 

 
 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 A.   Invocation:  Pastor Robert Hayes, South Strand Assembly of God  
 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Samples 
 

3.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
4.   MINUTES APPROVAL  

A.   Public Hearing October 28, 2014  
B.   Regular Meeting October 28, 2014 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 
 
6.   COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report June 30, 2014, Harper, Poston, & Moree, PA, CPA 
B. NAICS (North American Industrial Classification System) Presentation, Melissa Carter, 

Municipal Association of SC    
C. Coastal SC Chapter of the American Red Cross, Executive Director Nancy Conley to receive 

donation from Surfside Beach Police Department 
 D.     Department Reports 
  i.   Fire   
  ii.   Planning, Building & Zoning 
  iii.  Police 
 E.   Administrator’s Report 
     
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE:  Town Council will hold a visioning workshop on Wednesday and Thursday, November 
12th and 13th, at the Brookgreen Gardens Welcome Center Conference Room, 1931 Brookgreen Drive, 
Murrells Inlet, SC 29576.  The workshop begins at 9:00 a.m. and will end at 5:00 p.m.  The public is invited 
to attend.  This notice is published pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act §30-4-80. 

Veterans Day Service, Tuesday, November 11th at 2:00 p.m. at the Veterans Memorial on Surfside Drive.  
The Town of Surfside Beach recognizes that Veterans Day Services historically begin at 11:00 a.m., because 
the Armistice Treaty was signed at 11:00 a.m. on the 11th day of the 11th month (November) in 1918.  The 
Town of Surfside Beach chooses to hold its service at 2:00 p.m. so Veterans and the public may attend more 
than one service. 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

http://www.surfsidebeach.org/


                Town of Surfside Beach Town Council Meeting 
                Town Council Chambers  Monday, November 10, 2014 
                Agenda, Continued 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
7.   BUSINESS 

A.   Second Reading Ordinances. 
i. #14-0787 to amend Section 9-9 Charges to increase pier parking to $1.50 per hour; to 

allow nonresident property owners two (2) free parking decals; to add a trial season for 
selling 100 nonresident parking permits at $100 each, and to codify that participants in 
the Guy Daniels Surfoff shall be issued permits for free parking, Administrator Fellner. 

ii. #14-0788 regarding floodplain management in response to CRS requirements from 
FEMA, Director Morris 

B.   Committee Appointments (May be deferred until after executive session.)   
 i.   Board of Zoning Appeals Appointment:  Mr. Timothy Courtney  

  ii. Stormwater Committee:  Mr. Ron Crouch 
  iii. Construction Board of Appeals:  Mr. Orlando Arteaga 
 
8.   TOWN COUNCIL DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed. 
 
9.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 
 
10.   TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
11.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 A. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment of a person or persons to a public  
  body (7.B. above) 
 B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(2) to discuss proposed contractual arrangements  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 



 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES  2 
  OCTOBER 28, 2014  6:00 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.    9 
 10 
 Mayor Samples called the public hearing to order at 6:00 p.m.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore 11 
Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, Mabry, Magliette and Stevens were in attendance.  A quorum 12 
was present. Others present:  Administrator Fellner, Town Clerk Herrmann, Planning Director Morris, and Public 13 
Works Director Adair.    14 
 15 
 Mayor Samples explained that the hearing was for the public to comment on the proposed flood damage 16 
prevention ordinance. 17 
 18 
 2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS. 19 
 20 
 Mr. Phil Vasser, a 29-year town resident and manager of the Surfside Beach Resort, thanked Town 21 
Council and staff for the proactive approach to the town’s needs in reducing or controlling FEMA imposed 22 
increases on Federal flood insurance.  Over the past six days he had several discussions with staff and had seen 23 
three or four drafts of the proposed ordinance.  He explained that elevators were vital to the hotel and commercial 24 
businesses, and asked council to please consider that restriction carefully as it would definitely impact 25 
businesses. The town’s proactive approach will save everyone, although it might not lower [premiums.]  It could 26 
get worse if nothing was done.  As a resident and member of the town’s business community, he hoped that the 27 
CRS committee could review the ordinance again to ensure it is heading in the right direction, so the town can get 28 
the maximum impact from the ordinance. 29 
 30 
 Mr. Buck Ricks, 4th Avenue South, thought Surfside was being proactive and agreed with the town’s 31 
direction.  But he had an issue with the degree of change that was being proposed; the LMWA line.  At the last 32 
CRS meeting, he addressed the elevators being in enclosures, hydrostatic vents, and breakaway walls.  It 33 
seemed everyone went along with that, but a few weeks later he was made aware of the LMWA line, which is 34 
Limited Moderate Wave Action line.   He heard that the CRS committee was in consensus, but unless he was 35 
mistaken, they were not aware of this at the time of the last meeting.  That is where it affects his property.  The 36 
property adjacent to his can have a 290-feet enclosure for allowable uses.  He agreed with a reduction; he did not 37 
need 290-feet.  Gasoline with ethanol would not be stored, because the ethanol draws moisture into the mix.  He 38 
would bring ethanol-free gasoline from Conway.  It would be nice to have storage for a small push mower.  He 39 
prayed [sic] that Town Council would encourage the ability to have elevators.  He heard that residential may be 40 
allowed now, but limited to 40-square feet of enclosure.  While that would work for him; it would hurt the income 41 
for the Surfside Beach Resort and Holiday Inn.  Moving to lower insurance premiums is a good thing; but 42 
restricting income might be a wash or a negative.  Both hotels had to provide a lift for access to swimming pools 43 
to comply with Federal law.  The town has built handicap accessible ramps to the beach.  A motel without an 44 
elevator would not accommodate anyone with a handicap.  The code needs enough flexibility so these hotels can 45 
keep their services, because that is where much of the town’s accommodations tax was generated. Most 46 
business taxes come from the R-3 District on the boulevard, and the R-1 [sic] on 17.  Restricting income in the 47 
business area will create a need to raise taxes for residents that have property in R-2.  He prayed [sic] that the 48 
LMWA line would be reconsidered and that elevators would be allowed. 49 
 50 
 Mayor Samples asked any other speakers to come forward.  Staff and the CRS committee worked very 51 
hard; but they are only human so more input is better. 52 
 53 
   Ms. Stephanie Decatur of the Holiday Inn Surfside said they reviewed all the information and would like 54 
to mirror comments previously made by the gentlemen.  Their business is visitors.  They help the area attract 55 

Page 1 of 3 
 



Town Council Public Hearing 
October 28, 2014 

 
tourists; they want to stay with them.  Limiting the hotel on rebuild and having the elevators within the property will 56 
harm them and Surfside as well.  ADA requires them to have the elevator shafts.  They need repairs periodically, 57 
because they have maintenance issues after a while.  Her research found some counties in other states that 58 
leave hotels out of codes and ordinances like this and it works well for them.  She asked that Town Council take 59 
into consideration that the hotel properties need elevators to comply with ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) 60 
and its regulations. 61 
 62 
 Mayor Samples said at the last meeting a councilmember reminded everyone that the Town of Surfside 63 
Beach gets about 84-percent of its revenue from directly or indirectly from businesses via accommodations, 64 
hospitality, or property taxes.  Residents reap the reward from that.  He did believed that the services provided in 65 
town were second to none, but somebody had to pay for them.  It certainly was not Town Council’s, staff’s or the 66 
CRS committee’s intent to propose and implement something that would be detrimental to the town’s economy.  67 
He thought everyone recognized that tourism, the visitors who come to town, are the basis for the town’s 68 
economy.  The Holiday Inn, and more recently, the Surfside Beach Resort, do fantastic jobs promoting the Family 69 
Beach, and also carry quite a load of those contributions that help keep the town a great place to live.   70 
 71 
 Mr. Ricks neglected to mention that Ms. Morris had received compliments from the City of Myrtle Beach in 72 
their CRS rating, but he checked their area and they are not going to disallow elevators.  So, there are ways to 73 
get points without doing this stuff.  Mayor Samples said Myrtle Beach may have more political sway, but they 74 
would check with them. 75 
 76 
 Mr. Stevens said since elevators were addressed, he wanted to make sure the town does the right thing.  77 
Not only do the two hotels have elevators, there are numerous 3-story beach hours, condominium complexes and 78 
other buildings that have elevators.  He wanted to make sure the proposed ordinance meets ADA requirements.  79 
He knew of several new building projects and would like to learn how they were addressing ADA compliance 80 
issues.  What would happen if a homeowner ages and needs to install an elevator?  He would not want to be in 81 
that situation and not be able to get into his own house.  He referred to Section 14-4 No environmentally 82 
conditioned space shall be allowed below the lowest floor and asked if that was air conditioned spaces.  Ms. 83 
Morris said that was right.  Mr. Stevens said flood proofing shall not be permitted in town and asked for a 84 
definition.   85 
 86 

Mayor Samples said the regular meeting begins at 6:30 and the other members might have questions.  87 
This was discussed in a workshop during which these questions could have been asked.  He reiterated that staff 88 
and the CRS committee that was set up to help address the escalating flood insurance costs have done a 89 
yeoman’s job in putting this together.  There are certain items that were discussed; Mr. Vasser has a concern 90 
over elevators, let the other members have an opportunity to speak. 91 
 92 
 Ms. Morris said flood proofing, or more accurately “wet proofing” is only allowed in commercial properties 93 
in the downstairs area that is enclosed with special treated materials that would prevent wetting inside from a 94 
flood.  Mr. Stevens asked how penalties and violations applied to existing structures.  Ms. Morris said existing 95 
structures that are not currently in violation are grandfathered.  If they are in violation, they would have to comply.  96 
Mr. Stevens asked what the cost was to appear before the Construction Board of Appeals.  Ms. Morris said there 97 
is no cost.  Mr. Stevens said variances were not allowed within any designated floodway.  Ms. Morris said there 98 
are no floodways located in the town; the language is required by the state.    99 
 100 
 Ms. Mabry, who serves on the CRS committee, assured everyone that she had attended four seminars, a 101 
webinar, and she was going to one next month.  They were very familiar with the LMWA line and where they think 102 
it probably will move.  There are always hard decisions.  Who gets the benefit, and when she said that she meant 103 
all the businesses would receive a benefit of lower insurance that would be across the board.  She understood 104 
there are problems with the elevators; will your house be saleable, if an elevator is installed?  You would pay a 105 
much higher flood premium, if an elevator had not been put in.  The hotel is already being “eat up to death,” I can 106 
assure you, with insurance.  They get it coming and going.  If you could get 20-percent off of the businesses 107 
around town, and we look for that reduction, then we’re going to make decisions that are not always going to be 108 
popular.  Council has to be very aggressive in whatever they do, because they are looking at the town as a whole, 109 
and all the businesses as a whole.  This was a tough, tough decision, and it’s ever evolving, and it always will be.  110 
Myrtle Beach gets a very low rate, but remember, the town does not get credit for a lot of the things that Myrtle 111 

Page 2 of 3 
 



Town Council Public Hearing 
October 28, 2014 

 
Beach gets.  The town doesn’t have dams, levies, and many other things that would help us get more points.  So 112 
we get them where we can get them.  This is a much weaker ordinance than was proposed to council.  The 113 
committee proceeded painstakingly to try to make it work for the town.  She wanted everyone to know that there 114 
was a lot of hard, hard decisions and nobody took it lightly.  They did take everything into consideration and there 115 
were a lot of coins that the committee had to look at.  So please don’t think that anyone was being targeted; they 116 
were not.  It was very difficult and it still is. 117 
 118 
 Mr. Stevens thanked the committee members serving.  They are a group of good people that did a lot of 119 
hard work on the proposal.  Staff worked hard on it.  The main thing they want to do is get it right, realizing that 120 
the town is not a manufacturing town.  Tourism is the only industry the town has.  It was important to do the right 121 
thing for the tourism industry, because that produces about 84-percent of the town’s income according to Mr. 122 
Pellegrino.  He thought this was an on-going process.  It’s all about saving money.   123 
 124 
 Mr. Pellegrino asked how different standards for hotels would affect the CRS scoring, if they were either 125 
included or exempted from this ordinance.  Ms. Morris had spent most of the day on the telephone with the 126 
Department of Justice (DOJ) and explained that the town definitely does not want to see business decline 127 
because of these new regulations.  Copies of all the email messages were sent to Town Council.  The last email 128 
message from the DOJ said that there were different rules and regulations for residential elevators and 129 
commercial elevators.  DOJ recommended that the ordinance include “Commercial and residential elevators meet 130 
the Department of Justice requirements.”  That way, the commercial would certainly meet the size requirements; 131 
the town would not have to limit it, because there were several different factors in the commercial districts; i.e. the 132 
number of stories, or the number of rooms the hotels have.  So there would be no harm to any business.  Mr. 133 
Pellegrino asked if that wording would resolved the questions raised earlier.  Ms. Morris said it would allow for 134 
elevators in residential and commercial, which was being proposed.  The town would lose points by allowing that, 135 
but points would also be lost if the town did not allow elevators and the owners sought and were granted a 136 
variance.  It was almost a wash, but it would be promoting the businesses.  Mr. Pellegrino said he thought Ms. 137 
Morris had the better solution. 138 
 139 
 3.  ADJOURNMENT.   140 
 141 
 Mayor Samples thanked everyone for their comments, and was sure the CRS committee would review 142 
the information.  He adjourned the public hearing at 6:26 p.m. 143 
 144 
      Prepared and submitted by, 145 
 146 
      _____________________________________________  147 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 148 
Approved:  November 10, 2014   149 

 150 
____________________________________ 151 

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 152 
         153 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 154 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council    155 
 156 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 157 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 158 
 159 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 160 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  161 
 162 
Clerk's Note:  This document constitutes summary minutes of the public hearing that was digitally recorded.  163 
Appointments to hear recordings may be scheduled with the town clerk, or you may bring a flash drive to obtain a 164 
copy of the audio recording.  In accordance with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local 165 
media and interested parties. The agenda was posted on the town website, the entry door at Town Council 166 
Chambers, and in the Town Hall reception area.      167 

Page 3 of 3 
 



 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  2 
  OCTOBER 28, 2014  6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.    9 
 10 
 Mayor Samples called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro 11 
Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, Mabry, Magliette, and Stevens were in 12 
attendance.  A quorum was present. Others present:  Administrator Fellner; Town Clerk Herrmann; 13 
Finance Director King; Planning Director Morris; Public Works Director Adair, and Recreation Supervisor 14 
Ellis. 15 
 16 

2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 17 
 18 

 A.  Invocation:  Rev. Jeff Wood, Oasis of Hope Church, gave the invocation. 19 
  20 
 B.  Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Samples lead the Pledge. 21 
 22 

3.  AGENDA APPROVAL 23 
 24 
 Mr. Childs moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  Mr. Stevens moved 25 
to amend the agenda to defer Business Item 7.A.ii Ordinance #14-0788 back to the CRS (Community 26 
Rating Service) committee for additional review.  Mr. Pellegrino seconded.  All voted in favor of the 27 
amendment.  MOTION TO AMEND CARRIED.  All voted in favor of the primary motion as amended.  28 
MOTION CARRIED AS AMENDED.  Mayor Samples excused Ms. Morris from the meeting. 29 
 30 

4.  MINUTES APPROVAL  31 
 32 
A.  Regular Meeting October 14, 2014 and Corrections and Addendum to Minutes.  33 
 34 
Mr. Stevens moved to adopt the October 14, 2014 regular meeting minutes and the corrections 35 

and addendum to minutes as presented.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 36 
  37 

B.  Workshop October 21, 2014. 38 
 39 

 Mr. Childs moved to adopt the October 21, 2014 workshop minutes as presented.  Ms. Mabry 40 
seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 41 

 42 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 43 

 44 
 There were no public comments on agenda items. 45 
 46 

6.  COMMUNICATIONS. 47 
  48 

A.  Employee Service Award, Willie Carter, 15-years. 49 
 50 

 Mayor Samples presented Mr. Carter with a certificate of service, service pin, and bonus check 51 
for his 15 years of service.  Mr. Carter works in the public works department.  Mr. Carter said he was the 52 
best (speaker’s emphasis) laborer in the department; there was not a harder worker than him.  Mr. Carter 53 
received a standing ovation. 54 

 55 
 56 

Page 1 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
B.  Department Reports. 57 

  58 
 i.  Finance.  Director King presented the departmental report, a copy of which is attached hereto 59 
and made a part hereof by reference. 60 
  61 
 Mr. Stevens asked if all parking revenue went into the general fund.  Ms. King said no, some 62 
revenue goes into the pier fund.   63 
 64 
 Mayor Samples said the CTC, County Transportation Committee, funding and monies received in 65 
September was gas tax money.  He asked if it was for work recently done.  Ms. King said yes, and there 66 
were currently more projections being done, so another check will be coming in.  Mayor Samples 67 
understood that another $200,000 was committed at the last meeting that was attended by Mr. Adair.  He 68 
commended staff for being actively engaged in getting additional resources and putting those resources 69 
to work.  He thought the plan this year was to repave almost five miles of road, which was more than was 70 
repaved in the last five years.  Mayor Samples reiterated that staff was to be commended.    71 
 72 
 ii.  Public Works.  Director Adair presented the departmental report, a copy of which is attached 73 
hereto and made a part hereof by reference. 74 
  75 
 Mr. Adair said the dirt program was being suspended, because the supply was limited.  He did 76 
not want to buy dirt to do 50:50 ditch piping projects.  Mayor Samples asked councilmembers if they were 77 
in agreement.  COUNCIL CONCURRED. 78 
 79 
 Mr. Adair had additional comments not in his report:  repairs and cleaning had resumed on the 3rd 80 
Avenue North water tower.  There was a delay due to a scheduling conflict between Grand Strand Water 81 
and its contractor.  There was welding to be done and it was necessary to drain the tower down, which 82 
caused delays.  He attended the CTC meeting on October 14th, and requested an additional $200,000 for 83 
local road paving projects, which he plans to complete in 2015.  The town was granted the full amount 84 
requested.  Streets included in that round are 85 
 86 

o Cherry Drive from Pine to 7th Avenue North 87 
o 3rd North from Poplar to Myrtle where the drainage project is being done now 88 
o 2nd North and Ocean Boulevard to Myrtle 89 
o Myrtle Drive South from Surfside Drive to 10th Avenue South 90 
o Moss Drive from Sparrow to 10th South 91 
o Willow Drive from 3rd South to 2nd North 92 

 93 
 Mr. Adair said his service on the Solid Waste Authority’s technical advisory committee was just 94 
completed.  That committee compiled the county’s new waste management plan for the next three years.  95 
Once finalized, it would be presented to Town Council for a resolution of support as was done in the past.  96 
Mr. Adair was proud to report that Horry County Public Works was recently given the responsibility of 97 
beach maintenance and trash service that was formerly under the street and beach division.  Their 98 
director asked for a field tour with Mr. Adair to see the town’s operations and methods.  He was told that 99 
Surfside Beach is the model on how to take care of the beach.  He wanted to share that with council and 100 
the public.  The comment was already shared with his staff, and they were all “pretty happy about that.”  It 101 
was nice to get a pat on the back from the county.   102 
 103 
 Mr. Adair said this past summer presented some challenges that were already being addressed.  104 
Each division worked at capacity throughout the summer.  Trash was picked up seven days a week for 105 
the first time ever, or at least during his tenure.  It was evident that some changes have to be made to 106 
keep the level of service up to standards.  He would discuss this more at the November visioning 107 
workshop. 108 
 109 
 Mr. Stevens thanked Mr. Adair for placing lights in all the parks.  It made a big difference in the 110 
kind of people using the park.  Now he only saw decent people in the parks.    111 
 112 

Page 2 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
 Mr. Childs thanked Mr. Adair and his entire crew for the wonderful job they do around town.  He 113 
heard nothing but good things about their work.  He knew Mr. Adair worked as fast as he can on just 114 
about everything, so he appreciated it very much. 115 
 116 
 Ms. Mabry asked if there was a date scheduled to clean up the hydraulic leak that was mentioned 117 
at a previous meeting.  Mr. Adair said the company should be here in about two weeks.  The repairs at 118 
14th Avenue South where the water main break happened had to be repaired first, then they will continue 119 
on with the paving schedule and do the repair on Dogwood Drive.  Ms. Mabry said a big thank you to 120 
everyone in his department.  This was probably the busiest summer she could remember.  He was 121 
certainly given a lot of challenges with the all the rain, but he kept the town looking great.  He didn’t miss 122 
a beat.  Ms. Mabry thanked Mr. Adair and his men for doing such an outstanding job.  Mr. Adair said he 123 
reviewed overtime since July 1 today and found it was up.  Both the extra weekend yard pickup, and July 124 
4th falling on a Friday caused the beach crews to work on Friday and Saturday when staff was normally 125 
off, which contributed to the extra hours.   126 
 127 
 iii.  Special Events and Recreation.  Supervisor Ellis presented the departmental report, a copy 128 
of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference. 129 
 130 
 Mayor Samples thanked Ms. Ellis for everything she does.  He thought it was the best Family 131 
Festival the town ever had.  It might have something to do with the beautiful weather that day.   132 
 133 
 Mr. Childs agreed the Family Festival was always a success.  He wanted to meet with Ms. Ellis 134 
and Ms. Fellner to discuss events marketing.  He was sure they could improve attendance with better 135 
marketing.  Mr. Childs also thanked Ms. Ellis for contributions to the 50th Anniversary celebrations.  She 136 
worked tirelessly and did a lot of good work on those programs. 137 
 138 
 Ms. Mabry said congratulations.  She knew getting the recognition report from The Sun News 139 
was very up lifting and meant a lot to the town’s citizens.  Thank you very much; that recognition reflected 140 
Ms. Ellis’s hard work.  She had no questions, but just wanted to say congratulations. 141 
 142 
 Mayor Samples reiterated that the 50th Anniversary banners would be for sale.  Please contact 143 
Ms. Ellis, if you wish to make a purchase. 144 
 145 
 Mr. Stevens said he had visited and also participated as a vendor in the Family Festival.  He was 146 
not surprised it was nominated for best annual event and festival.  Ms. Ellis and Ms. Stalnaker work very 147 
hard and do a good job.  He asked if any research was done on a spring festival, including a Taste of 148 
Surfside, and Red Cross event.  Ms. Ellis said she was attending the next business committee meeting to 149 
give a report.  Mr. Stevens asked when the Christmas parade was being held.  Ms. Ellis said December 150 
13th.      151 
 152 
 C.  Administrator’s Report 153 
 154 
 Ms. Fellner reported the following:  155 
 156 

The American Heart Association Beach Ride is actually on November 8th, not the 5th as stated in 157 
Resolution #14-150.  Ms. Gina Burroughs of the American Heart Association advised staff of the error 158 
after picking up the signed resolution.  Town Council and the police department were notified of the 159 
correct date, and the town clerk offered a correction on the original document as a scrivener’s error.   160 

 161 
Dr. Mary Padua from Clemson University and she will meet on November 18th to view Ocean 162 

Boulevard and the surrounding area.  Councilmember Childs, liaison to the parking committee, and the 163 
councilmember that originally reached out to her were asked to meet with them as well.  If any other 164 
councilmembers want to join them, please let Ms. Fellner know so sufficient space will be available. 165 

 166 
The letter in response to Proviso 106.12 requesting the maximum allowable expenditures be set 167 

aside for policing activities in May was signed by Mayor Samples and received by the Department of 168 

Page 3 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
Revenue (DOR) well before the October 31st deadline.  After the first of the year, the Legislature may be 169 
considering additional action on this regarding the level of funding from the Chamber of Commerce 170 
monies that could be used; possibly increasing the percentage.  She will keep council apprised of any 171 
changes. 172 

 173 
Ben Burroughs, director of the Horry County Archives Center at Coastal Carolina University has 174 

confirmed his attendance at the November 18th accommodations tax committee meeting.  He will give a 175 
short PowerPoint.  Director King will attend to discuss financing options should the committee decide to 176 
recommend purchase of the signs.  The public is invited. 177 

 178 
Staff continues to work on preparations for the visioning workshop scheduled for November 12th 179 

and 13th.  Also work on town-wide employee reviews has commenced with a due date of December 24th.   180 
 181 
The finance committee has been working diligently on the fixed asset log and has the first draft 182 

complete.  This will discussed with the finance committee on November 3rd and available to all 183 
councilmembers after committee review.  184 

 185 
A thank you to Debbie Ellis and Mary Lynn Stalnaker for completing a successful year of events 186 

for our anniversary year.  Ms. Fellner said they made it a really special year for the town, to say nothing of 187 
the Fall Festival and the recognition we received from the paper.  They were to be applauded.   188 

 189 
Responses to Public Comments made at the October 10th meeting: 190 
 191 
Public Comment:  A resident wanted to make sure that Chief Cimini was recognized for his 192 

efforts for the town receiving an ISO Certification of one (1.)   193 
Response:  Chief Cimini was recognized in a public meeting by council upon his retirement and 194 

awarded his chief’s helmet.  Some councilmembers were present at the ISO announcement and gave 195 
many rounds of congratulations directed to the chief.  Staff also put out a press release concerning the 196 
integral part Chief Cimini in the town receiving a number one rating, and participated in a farewell thank 197 
you party.  He communicated to his staff that he did not want anything else planned.  Both 198 
councilmembers and staff recognized Chief Cimini publicly for his achievements, and also in the ways 199 
that were important to him personally.  200 

 201 
Public Comment:  A resident wanted to make certain that when proposing flood damage 202 

regulations that consideration be given to allowing elevators.   203 
Response:  The town plans to work with the hotels and to allow elevators, even in the V zone, 204 

and will be in regards to the Department of Justice regulations for elevators.  Mayor Samples asked Ms. 205 
Fellner to attend the next CRS committee meeting.  Ms. Fellner will inform Town Council of the meeting 206 
date. 207 

 208 
Public Comment:  A resident wanted the town to consider redesigning beach “don’t” signs to 209 

help decrease cigarette butts and promote positive behavior on the beach.   210 
Response:  Council may consider giving staff direction on this at some future time.  Currently no 211 

direction had been given.  Ms. Fellner had been looking at signage from other beach areas.  If she finds a 212 
design that looks good and is reasonably priced, it would be presented to council.    213 

 214 
Public Comment:  A resident wanted the town to regulate big fireworks on the beach on the 4th 215 

of July. 216 
Response:  At present the ordinance does not give the town the authority to enforce this.  Again, 217 

council may wish to consider this at a future time. 218 
 219 
Ms. Feller said two other residents simply made comments that did not require follow up.  There 220 

were no consensus items this evening. 221 
 222 
 223 
 224 

Page 4 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
7.  BUSINESS 225 
  226 

A.  Second Reading of Ordinances 227 
 228 

i.  #14-0786 to Amend Sec. 8-36 (a), “Fireworks” to place a 500 foot “No Fireworks Zone” 229 
on either side of the pier, Administrator Fellner. 230 

 231 
 Mr. Stevens moved to adopt second reading of #14-0786.  Mr. Pellegrino seconded.   232 
 233 
 Mr. Childs knew he was the sole dissenter on this, but in his opinion all fireworks except town 234 
sponsored shows should be prohibited.  The town had a beautiful $25,000 display and he hoped that the 235 
public would stop coming to town from all neighboring areas to shoot fireworks.  There was an incident 236 
where the public’s fireworks landed on the pier.  The town was very fortunate that there had not been a 237 
fire.  Fireworks were dangerous and most people just did not realize it. 238 
 239 
 Mr. Johnson asked if the 500-feet restriction was year round.  Ms. Fellner explained that fireworks 240 
were prohibited except on July 4th.  That is the only day fireworks are allowed. 241 
 242 
 Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Johnson, Mabry, 243 
Magliette, and Stevens voted in favor.  Councilmember Childs voted against.  MOTION CARRIED.  244 
Mayor Samples said second reading was adopted. 245 
 246 

ii.  #14-0788 regarding Floodplain Management in response to CRS requirements from 247 
FEMA, Administrator Fellner.   248 

 249 
This matter was referred back to the CRS committee for additional review and recommendations.  250 

See item 3.  Agenda Approval.   251 
 252 

iii.  #14-0789 Beach Renourishment, Administrator Fellner. 253 
 254 
 Mr. Stevens moved to adopt second reading of Ordinance #14-0789.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All 255 
members voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said second reading was adopted. 256 
 257 

iv.  #14-0790 to amend Section 2-186, Deposits and Withdrawals, Administrator Feller. 258 
 259 
 Ms. Mabry moved to adopt #14-0790 to amend Section 2-186, Deposits and Withdrawals.  Mr. 260 
Johnson seconded.  All members voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said second 261 
reading was adopted. 262 
 263 

B.  Consensus Items from October 21st Town Council Workshop and First Reading 264 
Ordinance #14-0787 to amend Section 9-9 Charges to increase pier parking to $1.50 per hour; to 265 
allow nonresident property owners two (2) free parking decals; to add a trial season for selling 100 266 
nonresident parking permits at $100 each, and to codify that participants in the Guy Daniels 267 
Surfoff shall be issued permits for free parking, Administrator Fellner.    268 
 269 
 Mayor Samples said this was first reading and a reaffirmation of the consensus items from the 270 
parking workshop.  Ms. Fellner asked Town Council to vote on the 17 items discussed at the workshop.  271 
The items could be considered individually or as a whole.  Mr. Childs said the items were already 272 
discussed and he believed they could vote on them as a block.  Ms. Fellner said that would be all of the 273 
items under the column 10/21/2014 that showed “consensus” would be voted on tonight.  Mayor asked if 274 
everyone understood.  Several members responded yes.   275 
 276 
 Mr. Pellegrino asked if the clerk could read the consensus items for the public’s benefit.  Mayor 277 
Samples said yes, and asked the clerk to read the items with consensus.  The clerk read: 278 
 279 
 1.  Recommendation for two (2) free stickers per non-residential property owner 280 

Page 5 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
 2.  Recommendation to remove all east side meters, which totals 41 281 
 3.  Prohibit all parking on the east side of Ocean Boulevard 282 
 4.  Recommendation to remove 24 meters from west side of Ocean Boulevard at the corners of 283 
the intersections 284 
 5.  Remove all meters on Ocean Boulevard, except those between 16th and 17th Avenues and to 285 
allow parking 286 
 6.  Allow permit parking only on Ocean Boulevard 287 
 7.  Recommendation for a one year trial of 100 passes at $100 each for nonresidents 288 
 8.  Recommendation for signs on Dogwood South between 6th and 7th and asking SCDOT (South 289 
Carolina Department of Transportation) to place additional signs on south side of Melody extending from 290 
Ocean Boulevard to Hollywood 291 
 9.  Recommendation to issue parking permits for free parking at meters for participants only in the 292 
Guy Daniels Surfoff and all other parking rules remain in effect and are to be enforced 293 
           10.  Raise parking rate to $1.50 an hour in the pier parking lot only 294 
           11.  Consider removing the way-finding signs on Highway 17 295 
           12.  Remove meters on Seaside Drive and allow free parking  296 
           13.  Place signage in all parking lots that state where additional parking is located 297 
           14.  Residents continue to receive parking stickers 298 
 299 
 Mr. Stevens asked if number 6 should state “allow permit parking only on the west side of Ocean 300 
Boulevard.  Mayor Samples said yes it should, and that does not include 16th and 17th Avenues.   301 
 302 
 Mr. Childs moved to adopt the consensus items as a whole.  Ms. Mabry seconded.   303 
 304 
 Mr. Pellegrino did not agree with item number 6 to allow permit parking on the west side of Ocean 305 
Boulevard.  He thought this would be the same mistake as putting meters there in the first place, and 306 
would cause limitations for the businesses in the tourist community.  Mr. Pellegrino understood the vote 307 
was as a whole.  He agreed with everything except item number 6. 308 
 309 
 Mr. Johnson said since the beginning of these discussions he did not support prohibiting parking 310 
on the east side of Ocean Boulevard.  There were some areas there that were not conducive for parking, 311 
but there were some that were.  It was mentioned that the reason some people wanted to prohibit parking 312 
on the east side was for safety.  It seemed to him that it would be safer to park on the east side in certain 313 
areas than it would be to park on the west side.   314 
 315 
 Ms. Mabry said they were only talking about 65 spaces for town residents that would be located 316 
on the west side.  As you know, the surrounding areas are growing and the town needs a place for its 317 
residents to park.  So 65 parking spaces for residents was not burdensome to the town.  The town does 318 
need a place for the residents to have to park. 319 
 320 
 Mayor Samples called for a vote of all those voting in favor of the consensus items as presented 321 
with the change to number 6 to add “on the west side of.”  Councilmembers Childs, Mabry, Magliette, and 322 
Stevens voted in favor.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino and Councilmember Johnson 323 
voted against.  MOTION CARRIED.   324 
 325 
 Ms. Fellner explained that the ordinance was housekeeping, because it just included the items 326 
just approved.   Ms. Mabry moved to adopt #14-0787.  Mr. Childs seconded.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro 327 
Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Mabry, Magliette, and Stevens voted in favor.  328 
Councilmember Johnson voted against.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said first reading passes. 329 
 330 

C.  Resolution #14-152 Workplace Safety Support, Administrator Fellner. 331 
 332 

 Ms. Fellner said this resolution needed annual approval as it helps the town score additional 333 
points in the safety review by the Municipal Association of South Carolina, which helps the town with its 334 
insurance rate.  Mayor Samples asked Ms. Herrmann to read the resolution.  She read: 335 
 336 

Page 6 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
Resolution #14-152 to Promote Work Place Safety 337 

 338 
Whereas, the Mayor and Town Council recognize that the prevention of accidents and promotion 339 

of work place safety affect employees, property, and the public and that promoting work place safety will 340 
enhance the operating efficiency of Town government; and 341 
 342 

Whereas, a proactive safety emphasis posture requires that safety training be provided for 343 
employees, and that sound procedures are in place to protect employees and equipment is of primary 344 
consideration and takes precedence over expediency in all operations. 345 
 346 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved,  that the Town of Surfside Beach will endeavor to provide a safe 347 
work environment that is free of recognized hazards through  the establishment and implementation of 348 
safety policies and procedures, with subsequent amendments and additions, designed to provide 349 
protection to Town employees, its citizens, public and private property, and the general public. 350 
 351 
 Now, Therefore, Be It Further Resolved, that the Town of Surfside Beach will support compliance 352 
with all Federal and State safety regulations; provide and require the use of personal protective equipment 353 
by all employees; and ensure that all employees are advised of and understand their safety 354 
responsibilities in the performance of their work. 355 
 356 

Be It So Resolved. Signed, sealed and dated this 28th day of October 2014. 357 
  358 
 Mr. Stevens moved to adopt Resolution #14-152.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  359 
MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said the resolution was adopted.  360 
  361 
 D.  GSATS Recommendations, Director Adair. 362 
 363 
 Mr. Adair said the Town of Surfside Beach has $3.5 million in the Transportation Improvement 364 
Plan earmarked for Highway 17 improvements administered by GSATS (Grand Strand Area 365 
Transportation Study); it is Federal Highway money.  One million dollars of this is dedicated to two 366 
intersection improvements for traffic lights. The Council Infrastructure Committee met on September 10th 367 
and 22nd, 2014, to conceptualize the needed work and to develop the town’s vision moving forward.  The 368 
Town of Surfside Beach desires to improve functionality and aesthetics along the busiest road in town.  369 
The conditions on this main artery reflect Surfside Beach as a whole to tourists, residents, retail 370 
customers, and the traveling public.  If the town cannot present a unified vision on these improvements, 371 
there could be significant delays in design and implementation, and there is even the potential 372 
reprogramming of this money to other jurisdictions. This is presented to Town Council as whole for 373 
consensus on the items discussed so Mr. Adair could move forward in meeting with representatives from 374 
SCDOT and GSATS.  The Council Infrastructure Committee recommends the following suggestions be 375 
presented to SCDOT:  376 
 377 

  Two intersection improvements: 378 
• Install a traffic light at 10th Avenue South  379 
• Install a traffic light at 11th Avenue North or 16th Avenue North   380 

 381 
Mr. Adair explained that 11th Avenue North is staff’s preference, but not unanimous on the 382 

infrastructure committee.  There is a large undeveloped commercial property on Highway 17 at 11th 383 
Avenue North that will remain undeveloped until there is traffic light for easy ingress/egress.  The director 384 
of development at the Jackson Company said the company would be interested in developing the 385 
property, if a light was installed.  The tax revenue would also be higher on commercial development.  11th 386 
Avenue North is not a straight road to the beach; no thru-traffic signs could be installed, because there 387 
would be a dead end at Cedar Drive.  Some committee members thought 16th Avenue North was a better 388 
option, because it was straight to the beach from Highway 17; a sidewalk is already in place.  11th Avenue 389 
North already has a median cut on the frontage road; 16th Avenue North does not, so one would have to 390 
be created. 391 

 392 

Page 7 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
Mayor Samples said it did not have to be a 4-way intersection.  It could be a 3-way intersection.  393 

GSATS title for this money is “Surfside Beach frontage roads.”  The frontage road is on the west side, as 394 
is the undeveloped property.  That property is not very valuable as it currently exists.  A light at 11th 395 
Avenue North makes it more attractive for commercial development.  Something must be submitted to 396 
SCDOT and GSATS in order to get the benefit of this programmed money.  Other jurisdictions are 397 
anxiously waiting for Surfside Beach to fight amongst itself, so they can take the money away and use it 398 
elsewhere, which has happened in the past.   399 

 400 
Mr. Childs asked if the mayor would call for a consensus of council to defer the traffic signal at 401 

11th or 16th Avenues North to wait for a recommendation from SCDOT and GSATS.  Mayor Samples said 402 
that was not a bad idea, because in the end, if SCDOT did not agree, nothing would be done.  It is 403 
SCDOT’s road.   404 

 405 
Mr. Pellegrino agreed with Mr. Childs.  He urged councilmembers to keep 5th Avenue North in 406 

mind when the decision was made.  There was no sidewalk on that road but it had a traffic light on 407 
Highway 17.  It was not a pedestrian-friendly road, and was dangerous to walk on.  There were many 408 
pedestrians on the Cedar Drive corridor around the lake.  All that traffic would be funneled there off 11th 409 
Avenue.  16th Avenue North already has a sidewalk, and there is public parking at the end.  If the final 410 
decision is 11th Avenue North, a sidewalk beginning at 11th Avenue at the highway and ending at the 411 
beach should be included in the improvements.   412 

 413 
Mayor Samples reiterated that it could be a controlled intersection.  It would be a t-configuration, 414 

and people would not cross from the west side to enter the town on 11th Avenue.   Similar intersections 415 
are in Myrtle Beach at Coastal Grand Mall.  In his opinion, that would be a great outcome.         416 

 417 
 Ms. Mabry understood the 11th Avenue recommendation very well, because she had been very 418 
concerned about keeping that property commercial.  She knows that was the highest and best use, not 419 
only of the land, but that the town would derive the most benefit from that use.  She was very interested in 420 
a light at 11th Avenue.  The mayor was correct, there are ways that the light could be beneficial and not 421 
harm the town, and yet be beneficial to any business that develops there.  Time was always of the 422 
essence when working with SCDOT.  The town could drag its feet all it wants, and it would lose the 423 
money.  It has happened before.  She wasn’t on council then, but she’s believes it happened several 424 
times.  Ms. Mabry believed council should make that decision and she would love to see 11th Avenue at 425 
least proposed.  If SCDOT prefers another location, it could advise the town.   426 
 427 
 Mr. Adair said he was encouraged by SCDOTS willingness to talk and listen.  He approached 428 
several of the representatives in Columbia at the Ride III meetings.  He told them the town infrastructure 429 
committee was meeting regularly and getting a consensus together in the town.  The town might want 11th 430 
Avenue North; there were other suggestions.  They seemed very, very happy that the working relationship 431 
could be established.  He saw a much different tone than he saw three years ago.   432 
 433 
 Mr. Pellegrino thanked Mr. Adair very much because he was “carrying the ball on this.”  He asked 434 
how long it would take to get a response from SCDOT.  Mr. Adair has already advised SCDOT that he 435 
wanted to meet with them as soon as this part was done.  The money is available now, October starts 436 
SCDOT’s fiscal year.  SCDOT could probably meet in November.  The first year, money is used for 437 
design and engineering; the second year, actual construction would be let.  Mr. Pellegrino asked if Ms. 438 
Mabry’s suggestion to concur today was advantageous.  Mr. Adair said that was his original desire, but 439 
whatever council desires.     440 
 441 
 Mr. Johnson asked if it would be better to hold off on the median breaks until after SCDOT 442 
responds to the traffic light location question.  Mr. Adair said they were unrelated.  Mr. Johnson said the 443 
paper states it is contingent on the light.  Mr. Adair said extension of turning lanes would be based on the 444 
traffic light location.  The center median closures would be closed regardless of the traffic light location.   445 
 446 
 Mayor Samples said rest assured that SCDOT was not going to let Surfside Beach elected 447 
officials decide where the traffic engineers chose.  This was the way the process worked.  He thought 448 

Page 8 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
those familiar with GSATS, which has been around for 20 years, and this was the process they go 449 
through.  The policy meetings were held here in chambers, but local residents seldom attended, even 450 
though the meetings were open to the public.  It was very important that the town take a position, but also 451 
recognize there are other stakeholders.   452 
 453 
 Mr. Childs asked if the mayor would like for him to withdraw his request for a consensus.  Mayor 454 
Samples thought the best use of the undeveloped property will only be achieved by having a light at that 455 
intersection.  That is what people in economic development have told him, because it is a landlocked 456 
property.  Mr. Childs agreed with him, and Mr. Adair made a very good argument for that.  There are 14 457 
acres there; it’s the last big piece of property on Highway 17 to be developed, which would be very 458 
beneficial for the town’s tax base.  He always supported a light at 16th Avenue North, but it would not 459 
benefit the town’s people.  Mr. Childs supported a light at 11th Avenue North.  Mr. Adair recalled going 460 
through this a few years ago.  SCDOT had a primary concern about some of the other stakeholders on 461 
the other side of the highway.  How would they get out of their sub-division?  He said to be honest, the 462 
light has to be somewhere close to Deerfield to allow those residents to make a left turn.  Mayor Samples 463 
said Mr. Adair was right. 464 
 465 
 Mr. Stevens moved to adopt the recommendations with a light being placed at 11th Avenue North.  466 
Mr. Childs seconded.   467 
 468 
 Mr. Pellegrino, said his opinion still stands, 16th Avenue was better because of the pedestrian 469 
corridor on Cedar.  His in-laws live on 11th Avenue North, so he would recuse on the vote.   470 
 471 
 Mr. Johnson believed this was a step in the right direction to get the “ball rolling.”  However it 472 
ended up, something needed to be done.  Mayor Samples agreed with him, and said that was really the 473 
point. 474 
 475 
 Mayor Samples, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, Mabry, Magliette and Stevens voted in 476 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino recused, the statement for which is attached 477 
hereto and made a part of these minutes.     478 
 479 
 Mayor Samples asked if the additional items should be covered for the record.  Mr. Adair said 480 
yes, in addition to the two traffic signals, there were seven center median breaks that should be closed, 481 
subject to SCDOT approval.  None of the following breaks have turning lanes and do not lead to 482 
accesses: 483 
 484 
 17th Avenue North 485 
 10th Ave North,  486 
 2 breaks between 10th and 5th Avenue North  487 
 1 between 5th and 2nd North,  488 
 3rd South,  489 
 1 between 10th and 14th South •   490 
 Eliminate frontage road median break between 10th and 5th North  491 

   492 
 Depending on the traffic light location, extend turning lanes at: 493 
  494 
 10th South (north and southbound),  495 
 4th South (southbound),   496 
 11th North (north and southbound- contingent on light)  497 
 16th North (north and southbound- contingent on light)  498 

 499 
Additional items: 500 
 501 
 Wrap all center medians with radius curb, with chutes for drainage  502 
 Re-surface entire project length 503 

Page 9 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
 Mr. Adair said the end result would be a nice, clean appearance for the town.  Mayor Samples 504 
said for the record, “Can I get a consensus on those items?”  All members CONCURRED.  Mayor 505 
Samples:  “Any opposed?”  There was no opposition.  Mr. Adair said a meeting would be scheduled.  506 
 507 
 8.  TOWN COUNCIL DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed 508 
by Town Council. 509 
  510 
 There were to matters to discuss.  511 
 512 

9.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 513 
 514 
 Mr. Tom Dodge, 15th Avenue North, did not agree with the 11th Avenue North traffic light.  He 515 
thought 15th Avenue North had more accidents that any other street in town.  The big tie-up problem 516 
began at the 544 intersection and then southward.  The summer traffic was backed up heading north 517 
almost down to 17th Avenue.  If there was a light at 16th Avenue, it would greatly reduce that traffic jam.  518 
He did not think the town should be concerned about what happens on the west side, even though it is 519 
part of town, it’s not [developed] there yet.  11th Avenue does not go straight to the beach.  16th Avenue 520 
goes straight to the beach, to a parking lot with sidewalks.  His feeling was that would greatly reduce the 521 
congestion at 544 that backs everything up.  The fact that 15th Avenue North has so many accidents, in 522 
his humble opinion, if there was a light at 16th, those people coming out of Deerfield coming across east 523 
on to 17 would reduce a lot of accidents.  11th Avenue just did not sound right to “this cowboy.” 524 
 525 
 Ms. Rutella Ford, Sparrow Drive, asked for a traffic light at 10th Avenue South, because it was just 526 
about impossible to get out there in the summer time.  It was chaos in the summertime.  Mayor Samples 527 
agreed with her and said that a light was going to be installed at that location.  Ms. Ford said thank you.  528 
She had lived here 58 years and traffic gets worse every summer.    529 
 530 
 Mr. Buck Ricks, 4th Avenue South, thanked the council for allowing public input on all the different 531 
issues, not just the elevators, but everything.  Some of his friends said derogatory things about the town.  532 
He had defended the town for years, and would continue doing so.  He dealt with, or dueled with, SCDOT 533 
regarding commercial and farm property he owns on Highway 544.  SCDOT utilizes the Institute of 534 
Transportation Engineers trip generation manual to determine drive ways.  He thought that might also be 535 
used to for the lights.  That information might help figure out what they might do and help find a path of 536 
least resistance.  Liability is a common thread with the elevators and other [CRS] issues.  Everyone wants 537 
liability reduced, which makes it better for everyone.  The hydraulic leak was mentioned at a couple of 538 
meetings.  There is bio-degradable hydraulic oil made of products sold at the Farmers Market.  He 539 
suggested that the town consider using that in their equipment.  There is also a bio-diesel fuel.  He 540 
thanked council for their time and ended saying “have a blessed evening.”    541 
 542 
 Ms. Mary Ann Kroll, 2nd Avenue North, thanked council and staff for all the work that they do.  She 543 
said the Lord had put it on her heart to say this:  she appreciated so much that the town opens its 544 
meetings with prayer, because there are so many places now that don’t allow it.  Schools and some jobs, 545 
but the town has taken a stand and [God] says when you’ve done, I will stand, and that was what she 546 
believed in.  The Bible has a scripture, Jeremiah 33:3, “Call upon me and I will answer thee and show 547 
thee great and mighty things, which thou knowest not.”  Ms. Kroll believed as long as we depend on that, 548 
we will be the town that they write about and talk about.  She thanked everyone for the prayers and 549 
cooperation, and the reputation our town has gained.  550 
 551 
 Mr. Tom Ard, Millwood Drive, a 13-year resident, appreciated the opportunity for his wife and him 552 
to get more involved in the town activities and affairs.  He voiced a concern about safety issues regarding 553 
children driving golf carts.  Golf cart rental companies are now located in town.  An 11-year old child 554 
almost ran into his grandson the other day when they were riding bicycles.  He noticed kids driving golf 555 
carts down Surfside Drive, and cars crossing the double yellow lines to go around golf carts.  It’s 556 
becoming more of an issue.  The council has been discussing parking problems, but during the season, 557 
he sees 20- to 30-percent of the parking spaces taken up by golf carts, which could easily take half the 558 

Page 10 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
space.  He believed consideration should be given to the amount of focus on safety issues relative to golf 559 
carts and place more restrictions on the drivers.    560 
 561 
 Ms.  Ann Dodge, 15th Avenue North, I just wanted to say thanks to the town for the festival.  Every 562 
year I say this one’s best.  This one was the best! (Speaker’s emphasis.)  I know all the work that goes 563 
into it, and I appreciate it so much.  It makes this town the best place of any place to live.  Thank you very 564 
much. 565 
 566 
 Tim Courtney, 15th Avenue South, also thanked Debbie Ellis for the Fall Festival.  It was fantastic.  567 
My daughters had a great time.  I even got my 14-year old to come out, so Ms. Ellis must have done a 568 
really good job.  (Laughter.)  Thank you for the open house at the fire station.  That was fantastic.  The 569 
kids had a great time.  I’ve heard in the past about some of the committees might be disbanded.  He did 570 
not think it was a good idea.  The committees were started years ago and it was a good idea to create 571 
community input.  Unlike the parking situation, we lost money [sic.]  He did not know what the final 572 
outcome would be but, he really thought that Mr. Magliette was right.  Things need to be reviewed before 573 
decisions were made on the town’s tax dollars.  After all, please keep the committees.  We need them.  574 
Thank you.     575 
   576 

10.  TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS. 577 
 578 
Mr. Childs said in response to the comments about golf carts, there were many issues; [Mr. Ard] 579 

was preaching to the choir.  The worst thing was there was getting to be so many rental places in town 580 
that there are almost as many golf carts on the roads as there are cars.  The carts were running faster 581 
every year.  His golf cart will go almost 30 miles per hour.  He believed it would get to the point that golf 582 
carts would be required to have brake lights and turn signals.  If you are going 25 to 30 miles per hour 583 
and slam on brakes, the people behind you have no idea what you are going to do.  There were a lot 584 
children driving golf carts; that has been a major complaint.  It’s a “fun game or carnival ride” for people 585 
that were not allowed to use golf carts at home.  It is a problem and something has to be done about it. 586 

 587 
Mr. Stevens thanked everyone for attending.  The law allows golf carts to be driven four miles 588 

from your home.  Several police officers and other people told him that State law has no penalty phase for 589 
golf cart operations.  He recommended that everyone contact their State Senator Ray Cleary and State 590 
House Representative Nelson Hardwick to tell them the state law needs to include penalties for golf cart 591 
operation just like penalties for cars.  He appreciated the “God bless you;” and God bless you back.  He 592 
also thanked those who took time to speak.  It was their 1st Amendment right to say whatever they 593 
needed to say to Town Council.  Tell them what they were doing right and wrong.  Thank you and God 594 
bless you all. 595 

 596 
Ms. Mabry thanked everyone for attending.  When the public attends it really does make the 597 

council’s job easier; at least it makes her job easier.  She thanked the public again for attending and 598 
sharing their thoughts with council.  They did take their comments to heart.  She wanted to make sure 599 
that everyone understood that the CRS committee was very well educated.  FEMA tells the town who 600 
may serve.  There are experts in lending, insurance, and all the fields necessary.  She assured the public 601 
that the committee works hard and studies.  She said the committee does a fantastic job.  Every concern 602 
would be taken to heart.   603 

 604 
Mr. Magliette thanked everyone for attending.  He encouraged them to participate in local 605 

government, because without that input the council could not really make decisions that would benefit the 606 
entire community of Surfside Beach.  As he had said many times, we live in a little gem.  This is a 607 
wonderful small town that has fire, police, the beach, wonderful neighbors; it’s a beautiful little town.  We 608 
need to be very, very careful how we develop a lot of these programs that we’re doing.  Take small steps 609 
and find the right balance.  He wanted to make sure that people understood that is why it was so 610 
important when he talks with people that they offer suggestions.  Even if they did not agree with him, he 611 
needed to hear their input.  He and his wife could have moved anywhere, but chose to move here, 612 
because of the people and the services.  He said they have to be very careful to be balanced about how 613 
many people are allowed on the beach.  That has been discussed repeatedly with regard to parking.  614 

Page 11 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
There can only be so many people on the beach.  The town does not want to be like Myrtle Beach and 615 
certainly cannot be like Litchfield and other areas that were gated communities and do not let anyone on 616 
their beaches.  Surfside Beach is a unique small little town, and needs to be able to provide quality 617 
services for its people.  The council tries to work collaboratively with each other to find that balance.  He 618 
thanked everyone again for their input, attending the meetings, and participating in our government.  Mr. 619 
Magliette thanked Indigo Creek Plantation for holding a food drive on October 18th to benefit South Strand 620 
Helping Hand.  A trailer load of food was delivered.  Volunteers to help unload the food were from the fire 621 
department: T. R. Grady, Alfredo Pellegrino, and Tammy Ross; and from the police department, officers 622 
A. J. Martin and David Cornett. He really appreciated that these individuals helped unload the trailer on 623 
their own time.  One of the best things you can do is help someone in need.  Neighbors to Neighbors is a 624 
program that provides free transportation for individuals to medical appointments, grocery shopping and 625 
other life sustaining and life enhancing appointments.  If you can provide two rides a month, please 626 
contact Grace Ministries at 843.839.0702.  Thank you very much and God bless you. 627 

 628 
Mr. Pellegrino thanked every for attending and for their input.  He liked committees and their 629 

input.  He did not always agree with it, but no one agreed with everything.  The council needs that input 630 
and needs people involved.  A better solution was developed at the end because of that input.  Mr. 631 
Pellegrino supported business development.  He was passionate about learning from mistakes; not 632 
making the same mistakes again.  He recused himself from voting due to personal interest, but he still 633 
thought the town should learn from 5th Avenue North.  A light was put on that road without a sidewalk; 5th 634 
Avenue North is not a pedestrian friendly road.  Cars travel down that road at 30 to 45 miles per hour.  635 
There is no median, so people were actually walking in the road.  In his opinion, the same problem would 636 
be created at 11th Avenue and down through the Cedar corridor to get by the lakes.  At 16th Avenue North 637 
a sidewalk is in place and public parking was available.  He could not vote on this matter, but he really 638 
believed the council was not learning from past mistakes.  First reading was held on some parking 639 
matters at this meeting.  Part of that was to allow permit parking on Ocean Boulevard on the west side.  640 
Mr. Pellegrino said that was a mistake from the past.  He was seated as a councilmember today, because 641 
of activities surrounding the parking issues.  He reiterated that a “new can of worms” was being opened in 642 
a different way with the same situation.  The council really needs to consider the past and learn from the 643 
history to move forward from it. He thanked everyone very much for their comments.  Although he voted 644 
no on certain things, and he did not agree with everything that went on, once the council decided on an 645 
issue, it belonged to the council.  He would support its decision, and move forward.  He thanked everyone 646 
again for attending, and for their comments.  God bless.   647 

 648 
Mr. Johnson thanked everyone for attending.  God bless you.  Committees were good; they serve 649 

a purpose.  But once they become political or personal, then there could be or was a problem.  That was 650 
something that council would have to consider, it the problem persists.  He had some other issues, but 651 
would speak with the individuals personally.   652 

 653 
Mayor Samples introduced Mr. Bill Taylor, the town’s field representative from the Municipal 654 

Association of South Carolina (MASC.)  He appreciated Mr. Taylor taking time to attend the meeting.  At 655 
the regional meeting of MASC in Georgetown a few weeks ago, Surfside Beach and Pawleys Island were 656 
the only beach communities represented.  The meeting was to discuss potential legislative items to take 657 
to the General Assembly.  The golf carts problems were brought to the attention of Representative 658 
Goldfinch who attended the meeting.  Whether intentional or not, the new legislation allowing a four mile 659 
radius for driving golf carts from home created a real problem for local jurisdictions, which the town does 660 
not have authority to regulate.  No one should be driving that did not have a driver’s license; that was 661 
illegal.  They should not be driving at night.  Mayor Samples said someone he knew very well told a 662 
couple of councilmembers in golf carts at the drive-in movie that their carts were not low speed vehicles 663 
that are allowed to travel at night.  The members were good enough to recognize the problem and 664 
adjusted things to avoid doing something illegal.  He thought this council was working together.  It did not 665 
agree on everything, which was obvious.  There was no way to get seven people in North America who 666 
would agree on everything.  We live a good life.  We talk and discuss the issues and work hard at it.  The 667 
council appreciates that the public attends and makes comments.  If it can, council does try to 668 
accommodate and balance the interest.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 669 

 670 

Page 12 of 13 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 
October 28, 2014 

 
 11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, 671 
appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee, or the 672 
appointment of a person to a public body. 673 
 674 
 Mr. Johnson moved to enter executive session at 8:08 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in 675 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   676 
 677 
 Mr. Johnson moved to reconvene regular session at 9:14 p.m.  Mr. Childs seconded.  All voted in 678 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   679 
 680 
 Mayor Samples said no action was taken during executive session. 681 
 682 
 12.  ADJOURNMENT 683 
  684 
 Mr. Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:14 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  685 
MOTION CARRIED. 686 
 687 
      Prepared and submitted by, 688 
 689 
      _____________________________________________  690 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 691 
Approved:  November 10, 2014   692 

 693 
____________________________________ 694 

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 695 
         696 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 697 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council    698 
 699 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 700 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary Beth Mabry, Town Council 701 
 702 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 703 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  704 
 705 

 706 
Clerk's Note:  This document constitutes summary minutes of the meeting that was digitally recorded.  707 
Appointments to hear recordings may be scheduled with the town clerk, or you may bring a flash drive to 708 
obtain a copy of the audio recording.  In accordance with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were 709 
distributed to local media and interested parties. The agenda was posted on the town website, the entry 710 
door at Town Council Chambers, and in the Town Hall reception area.  Meeting notice was also posted 711 
on the Town marquee.       712 

Page 13 of 13 
 



Surfside Beach Business License Project 
 
 
The Municipal Association of SC advocates cities and towns update their business license tax class 
schedules every 2 to 3 years to the most current data. To avoid the possibility of a lawsuit claiming 
unfair taxation, municipalities that use the Model Business License Ordinance need to adopt these 
revised tax rate classifications. 
 
The MASC model business license ordinance includes the class schedule, which is based on annual 
IRS data for business gross and net income. The profitability ratio by industry is calculated from the 
income data. The 7 tax rate classifications are derived from the ratios. Class 1 represents businesses 
in an industry with lowest profitability ratio and Class 7 represents businesses in an industry with the 
highest profitability ratio. The Association has committed to revise the tax rate classifications or the 
Class Schedule annually as the IRS releases the latest data. 
 
Using the 2014 MASC Class Schedule a revenue neutral Rate Schedule was produced for Surfside 
Beach. Only 10 out of 3,195 licensees increased their fee by at least 20% and $200. The impact of 
the proposed rates is shown in the table below.  
 
 
 
Impact of MASC Proposal 
 
 
    Number of 

Licenses 
Percent of 

Total 
Licenses 

Decrease in fee = 935 29% 
Fee Increase $1>25 = 1,762 55% 
Fee Increase $26>50 = 276 9% 
Fee Increase $51>100 = 179 6% 
Fee Increase $101>200 = 28 1% 
Fee Increase >$201 = 15 0% 
Total  3,195  

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

    Surfside Beach Fire Department 
Town Council Report 
November 10, 2014 

 

Submitted By 

     Anthony Fox 
Fire Chief 

 

 
 

0 | P a g e  

 



The following is an activity report of the operations of the Fire Department from 
October 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014 

Mutual Aid / Auto Aid 

Mutual Aid (Given)     2 

Mutual Aid (Received)     0  

Automatic Aid (Given)    4 

Automatic Aid (Received)    1 
 

Fire Runs  

Building Fire     0 

Outside Fire     0 

Mobile Property, Vehicle/Boat Fire     0 

Arcing wire     1 

Brush, brush/grass mixture              0 

Dumpster, Rubbish, Other     0 

Cooking     1 

Fire Other     0 

                                         Total              2 
 

Rescue/Emergency Medical Incident  

Rescue/EMS other     0 
Medical Assist, assist EMS Crew             68 
Motor Vehicle Accident/Pedestrian    0 
Motor Vehicle Accident/no injuries     5 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with injuries    6 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with Entrapment    0 
Water Rescue/Swimmer/Surf                      0 
                                         Total             79 

 
1 | P a g e  

 



Hazardous Condition / No Fire  

Power line Down     0 

Overheated Motor                                       0 

Vehicle Accident, General Cleanup    0 

Hazardous Condition Other     1 

Gas Leak (Natural – Propane)     0 

                                          Total     1 

Service Call  

Smoke or Odor Removal     0 

Person in Distress, other     0 

Assist Invalid     5 

Service Call, other                                      1 

Unauthorized Burning                                 0 

Lock Out     0 

Elevator Rescue     0 

Public Service Assistance, Other                2  

Water Problem, Other     0 

Fireworks Stand by                                     0  

                                           Total     8 

Good Intent Call  

Dispatched & Cancelled en-route                8 
Other      0 

Assist Police Other      0 

No Incident Found                                       0 

                                           Total      8 

 

 
2 | P a g e  

 



False Alarm/False Call  

Alarm System Activation, No Fire               2 

False Alarm or False Call, No Fire   14 

System Malfunction     3 

Smoke Detector Activation              2 

Unintentional Transmission of Alarm          0 

Sprinkler Activation, No Fire     0 

                                            Total   21 

Total Incidents: 

Total Incidents October 2014                  119 

Total Incidents September 2014             132 

Total Incidents 2014                              1301       

Lost Estimates:  

Estimated loss by fire for October 2014:   NONE  

Additional information for October  
 All SCBA’s (Self Contained Breathing Apparatus) monthly tests per NFPA requirements and 
repairs made; adjustments and battery replacements were completed. 

Monthly Turnout Gear inspection completed per NFPA requirements. 

All apparatus equipment checked and inventories verified for compliance to ISO, OSHA and 
NFPA requirements.   

All required apparatus maintenance performed by Town Shop personnel. 

Surfside Beach Fire Department Volunteer staffing levels increased by two (2). 

 

 

 

 

 

3 | P a g e  

 



Junior Firefighters Activities  

Junior firefighters participated in all drills that the senior members did and had four separate 
training meetings during the month and spent 350 hours in training and work details in the fire 
station during the month.  We are still maintaining our waiting list for junior firefighters. We have 
a very good group of young people that we are very proud of who will be excellent senior 
members when they come of age.  Captain Zimpleman has also stressed to our junior members 
the importance of academic excellence in school as a requirement of our program.  Should a 
junior member fall below the required GPA they will be removed from the program until their 
academic scores improve. 

Fire Prevention Activities  

Completed Inspections                    20      
Re-Inspections                           5 
New Business Inspections                               8 

Pre Fire Plans (New)                      6    

Pre-Plans Revised / Up-Dated                         5 

Fire Station Visits                    10 (25 people) 

Public Education Events                         6 
Childs Birthday Party @ Fire Station                1 (25 Kids) 

Child Car Seat Inspection / Installs                   0     

Total Fire Prevention Activities:       61 

During the month, the new businesses inspected in accordance with State, NFPA and ICC 
codes. Monthly Safety Inspection of Town Hall, Police Station, and Civic Center and Rescue 
Squad were completed. 

Fire Marshal Spain also started using the fire department iPad to conduct his inspections.  The 
iPad has become a very important tool because it allows him to use his time more efficiently.  
The application used is completely paperless which helps the fire department reduce the 
amount of resources used while helping us build a database of inspections completed and any 
issues that were found during the inspections.   

 

 

 

 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

We had 6 public education events for the month of October which allowed our firefighters to 
interact with several hundred people of all ages. 

• Family Fest 

• Open House- 500 to 600 People 

• Senior Citizen Center- 25 people (Exit Drill) 

• Surfside Methodist Church School – 25 Kids (What to do if you House is on Fire) 

• Seaside Elementary – 101 Student and Parents. Police and Fire Station tours, Fire 
safety video, Show apparatus and Police Cars, Show various Fire Fighting and Rescue 
Tools.  

• Surfside Library – 14 Kids ( Read a book to the kids) 
                 
 

Training 

Volunteer and Career personnel dedicated 216 hours to training and 251 hours responding to 
calls during the month of October. 

During the month of October, the training drill topics were: Annual live burn training at 
the Myrtle Beach Training Center.  
 
Junior Firefighters conducted training sessions on: 

• Rehab Deployment (2Hours) 
• Hose Deployment and packing/light set up (2Hours) 
• Fire ground simulation fitness training (2Hours) 
• Team building exercise (2Hours) 

    
Surfside Beach Fire and Horry County Fire conducted joint training sessions on: Live 
burn operations and water rescue.  
 
One career firefighter attended a 16 hour course taught by the South Carolina Fire 
Academy, and two career members are now certified to teach courses in 
“Responding to Utility Emergencies” and “Basic Auto Extrication” 
 
Career personnel completed the Municipal Association of South Carolina (Risk Management 
Services online training) for September to receive an additional 4 hours of on-line training during 
the month.  All career personnel continue to do the Centrelearn training (Horry County Fire 
Rescue) to keep up their skills and knowledge to stay up of the national trends as a First      
Responder. The Career personnel attended the required drills to meet their training hours to 
comply with ISO and NFPA requirements. 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



Staff Report 

Captain Prentice Williams (Training Officer):   
Captain Williams continues to research training needs for all of our firefighters.  

He continues to work with the area departments on joint training and teaching our personnel the 
skills needed to be efficient at emergencies.  During the month of October, he along with the 
other Captains continued conducting drills with SBFD firefighters that consisted of our annual 
live burn requirements.  Live burns were held at the Myrtle Beach Fire Department Training 
Center, and these drills helped firefighters work on basic firefighting skills and with fire ground 
communications.  Horry County Fire Rescue participated in these trainings and each time we 
train together our relationship gets stronger.   

He continues to provide the Town Safety Training conducted each month to keep the town in 
compliance with our insurance carrier’s requirements.  

He is preparing the training for the month of November.  Captain Williams is an outstanding 
employee. 
 
Captain Ted Sacra (Fire Prevention Officer):   
Captain Sacra was the lead officer for this year’s fire prevention open house.  This event was 
very successful as we 500 plus visitors to our fire house.  Many of our members took part in the 
open house and we exhausted our supply of hot dogs and ice cream.   

Captain Sacra continues to make sure that we have pre-plans on every commercial building in 
town and that they show the square footage, electrical panel locations, closest hydrants, 
hazards and many items needed by the incident commander in the event of a fire. 

We will soon be discussing plans to work on a child safety seat drive and to have members 
trained in the installation of child restraints.    

He is a model employee who strives to make improvements and is always willing to take on new 
assignments.  Captain Sacra was the officer who organized the fire department involvement in 
Family Fest and the fire department open house dedicating many hours of his time both on and 
off duty to these events.   
Captain Robert Packard (Technical Services Officer):   
He is out on Workers Comp leave for the month, we are not sure when he will return.  
Engineer Tom Zimpleman is acting Battalion Captain in Captain Packard’s absence and we are 
covering the Engineer position with on call part-time volunteers. 
Engineer Tom Zimpleman (Acting Battalion Captain): 
Captain Zimpleman continues to be an excellent employee; he is Acting Captain of “C” shift 
while Captain Packard is on medical leave. He is not only doing Captain Packard’s work 
assignments but his own as well.  I am very proud of his work ethic; he takes assignments and 
never complains.    

Captain Zimpleman oversees the Junior Firefighter program and works on weekly training 
programs with them. He is a great asset to the department and is a very hardworking employee.  
Captain Zimpleman was recommended to the Optimist Club of the South Stand for his efforts as 
the mentor to the junior firefighters.  In an effort to help Captain Zimpleman with the instruction 
of the Junior Firefighters we will be sending him to become a certified instructor for the basic 

6 | P a g e  

 



firefighting classes that all firefighters must go through.  Once he is certified he will be able to 
teach two basic firefighting classes and one advanced firefighting class to both our junior 
firefighters and any new firefighters that enter the agency making him a very valuable asset.     
Engineer Larry Carter (Engineer Firefighter II): 
Engineer Carter has been working with Captain Williams on the 2015 training curriculum for all 
of our firefighters.  Mr. Cater updated several plans and created a training book for several 
training sessions.    

He is consistent and a good worker, he is always on time and is very dependable. 
Engineer James Behrens (Engineer Firefighter II):  
Engineer Behrens is doing a good job. He has been working with Captain Sacra on the pre-
plans and continues to work on making sure all plans are completed. He continues his 
commitment to wanting to be a good firefighter. 

He will be attending the next fire inspector class offered by the South Carolina Fire Academy in 
December and will also be attending fire instructor I later this month.    

 
Chief Fox’s Comments:  
This has been an exciting month for me.  Getting to know the area and the other members of 
the SBFD has been very interesting and informative.  As I have settled in I have developed 
goals for our members and for our officers.  It is very important that we focus on training our 
entire membership both in house and through fire academy classes.  We are lucky in that many 
of the people that choose to volunteer here are career firefighters or were career firefighters in 
the past.  Having that kind of training experience and knowledge at our disposal is invaluable.  
As a result I have assigned volunteer officers to Captain Williams to assist in the training 
department so that the SBFD can capitalize on their knowledge and experience. 

Surfside Beach Fire Department hosted a water rescue exercise on the 28th of October; this was 
run by the Horry County Maritime Emergency Response Team (MERT) and was a great 
success.  The situation was a collision between a banana boat and a motor boat resulting in 
several injuries.  The reason this was such a great success was that the members of the SBFD 
were able to work with agencies they would not normally work with unless it was a dire 
emergency.  We were able to see what resources other agencies had and we were also able to 
identify areas that we need to work on as well as equipment issues. The United States Coast 
Guard was present and took part in the simulated rescue; we will be working on strengthening 
our relationship with the USCG and the SBFD will continue to be involved with the MERT team 
as our goal is to obtain as much water rescue training as possible in preparation for the summer 
months.    

Anthony B. Fox    
Chief of Department 

7 | P a g e  

 






























































































































































































































































